2007

Linda Anderson v. Glenn Hunter Thompson : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Utah Code Ann. §78-2A-3(2)(h).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

ISSUE 1: Did the District Court err in finding the Respondent in contempt of Court for involving the minor children in the divorce proceeding by holding a family meeting and explaining divorce and child support issues?

ISSUE PRESERVED AT TRIAL: The issue of Respondent not being in contempt was preserved by the Affidavit of Glenn H. Thompson filed in opposition to Petitioner's Order to Show Cause. (R@262-272 and R@280-309). The issue was also preserved at the Order to Show Cause hearing on March 19, 2007. (R@415). Specific reference to dismissal of the Order to Show Cause is made during argument by Respondent's counsel. (R@415 P. 25). The issue of contempt was preserved throughout the evidentiary hearing. (R@416).

STANDARD OF REVIEW: The standard of review for contempt in a civil action is clear and convincing evidence. Von Hake v. Thomas, 759 P.2d 1162 (Utah 1988). The interpretation of a divorce decree is reviewed for correctness, affording the District Court no deference. Hawkins v. Peart, 37 P.3d 1062 (Utah 2001).

ISSUE 2: Did the District Court err in finding Respondent in contempt for involving the children in divorce proceedings by giving Petitioner and one of the children child support checks with denigrating language on the checks?

ISSUE PRESERVED AT TRIAL: The issue of Respondent not being in contempt was preserved by the Affidavit of Glenn H. Thompson filed in opposition to Petitioner's Order to Show Cause. (R@262-272 and R@280-309). The issue was also preserved at the Order to Show Cause hearing on March 19, 2007. (R@415). Specific reference to dismissal of the Order to Show Cause is made during argument by Respondent's counsel. (R@415 P. 25). The issue of contempt was preserved throughout the evidentiary hearing. (R@416). Specific reference to the conduct of the meeting not being contempt was argued at the end of the evidentiary hearing. (R@416 P. 74). Respondent's counsel responded to the Court's question regarding the two checks at the March 19, 2007 hearing. This response was followed by discussion of the meeting with the children. (R@415 P. 23-25).

STANDARD OF REVIEW: The standard of review for contempt in a civil action is clear and convincing evidence. Von Hake v. Thomas, 759 P.2d 1162 (Utah 1988). The interpretation of a divorce decree is reviewed for correctness, affording the District Court no deference. Hawkins v. Peart, 37 P.3d 1062 (Utah 2001).

ISSUE 3: Did the District Court err in awarding Petitioner attorney's fees?

ISSUE PRESERVED AT TRIAL: The issue of the award of attorneys' fees for the Petitioner was raised at the evidentiary hearing. Specific objection to the attorneys' fee award took place at the end of the evidentiary hearing. (R@416 P. 78-79).

STANDARD OF REVIEW: The interpretation of a divorce decree is reviewed for correctness, affording the District Court no deference. Hawkins v. Peart, 2000 Utah 94, 37 P.3d 1062 (Utah 2001).

ISSUE 4: Did the district Court err in not awarding Respondent his attorney's fees?

ISSUE PRESERVED AT TRIAL: The issue of the award of attorneys' fees for the Respondent was raised at the evidentiary hearing. Specific objection to the attorneys' fee award took place at the end of the evidentiary hearing. (R@416 P. 78-79).

STANDARD OF REVIEW: The interpretation of a divorce decree is reviewed for correctness, affording the District Court no deference. Hawkins v. Peart, 2000 Utah 94, 37 P.3d 1062 (Utah 2001).

DETERMINATIVE STATUTES

Utah Code Ann. §78-32-1

The following acts or omissions in respect to a court or proceedings therein are contempts of the authority of the Court:

(1) Disorderly, contemptuous or insolent behavior toward the judge while holding the court, tending to interrupt the due course of a trial or other judicial proceeding.

(2) Breach of the peace, boisterous conduct or violent disturbance, tending to interrupt the due course of a trial or other judicial proceeding.

(3) Misbehavior in office, or other willful neglect or violation of duty by an attorney, counsel, clerk, sheriff, or other person appointed or elected to perform a judicial or ministerial service.

(4) Deceit, or abuse of the process or proceedings of the court, by a party to an action or special proceeding.

(5) Disobedience of any lawful judgment, order or process of the court.

(6) Assuming to be an officer, attorney or counselor of a court, and acting as such without authority.

(7) Rescuing any person or property in the custody of an officer by virtue of an order or process of such court.

(8) Unlawfully detaining a witness or party to an action while going to, remaining at, or returning from, the court where the action is on the calendar for trial.

(9) Any other unlawful interference with the process or proceedings of a court.

(10) Disobedience of a subpoena duly served, or refusing to be sworn or to answer as a witness.

(11) When summoned as a juror in a court, neglecting to attend or serve as such, or improperly conversing with a party to an action to be tried at such court, or with any other person, concerning the merits of such action, or receiving a communication from a party or other person in respect to it, without immediately disclosing the same to the court.

(12) Disobedience by an inferior tribunal, magistrate or officer of the lawful judgment, order or process of a superior court, or proceeding in an action or special proceeding contrary to law, after such action or special proceeding is removed from the jurisdiction of such inferior tribunal, magistrate or officer. Disobedience of the lawful orders or process of a judicial officer is also a contempt of the authority of such officer.

Utah Code Ann. §30-3-10.1

(1) "Joint legal custody":

(a) means the sharing of the rights, privileges, duties, and powers of a parent by both parents, where specified;

(b) may include an award of exclusive authority by the court to one parent to make specific decisions;

(c) does not affect the physical custody of the child except as specified in the order of joint legal custody;

(d) is not based on awarding equal or nearly equal periods of physical custody of and access to the child to each of the parents, as the best interest of the child often requires that a primary physical residence for the child be designated; and

(e) does not prohibit the court from specifying one parent as the primary caretaker and one home as the primary residence of the child.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case is an appeal from an Order From Hearing Held April 16, 2007 entered by the Third Judicial District Court, Tooele County, State of Utah. The Presiding Judge is Mark S. Kouris. This is the second appeal arising out of post-divorce proceedings involving the Petitioner and Respondent.

The divorce petition was originally filed in 1999. A Decree of Divorce was entered April 20, 1999. The parties proceeded forward pursuant to the Decree of Divorce and special arrangements of the parties until after Petitioner's remarriage in November, 2004.

Petitioner filed a Petition to Modify Decree of Divorce on March 2, 2005. A stipulation regarding the exchange of financial documents was placed on the record and complied with by the parties. Petitioner requested that her counsel withdraw and new counsel appeared for Petitioner. Petitioner filed an Order to Show Cause. Trial was held on October 26, 2006. The Court's Order from Trial Held October 26, 2006 and Objection Hearing Held December 18, 2006 entered January 9, 2007 is the subject of the earlier appeal in this case. The Order was also involved in this Order to Show Cause proceeding. Petitioner claimed Respondent failed to pay child support as required by this Order.

Petitioner filed an Order to Show Cause dated February 22, 2007 and entered March 2, 2007. Respondent filed an Order to Show Cause dated March 23, 2007. Argument was heard on March 19, 2007 and an evidentiary hearing was held of April 16, 2007. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were entered June 15, 2007. An Order from Hearing Held April 16, 2007 was entered June 15, 2007. Respondent appeals the June 15, 2007 Order.

The District Court denied the Petitioner's claims that Respondent should be held in contempt of Court for not paying the full amount of child support ordered by the Court in the Order from Trial Held October 26, 2006 and Objection Hearing Held December 18, 2006. The Court found the Respondent in contempt of Court and awarded Petitioner her attorneys' fees and costs.

This appeal involves the District Court's finding the Respondent in contempt of Court for holding a family meeting with his children at which the effects of the divorce

on the Respondent and his children and Respondent's position regarding the bringing of the post-divorce proceedings were discussed. This appeal also involves the District Court's finding the Respondent in contempt of Court for a "B" that was placed (not by Respondent) on two child support checks. This appeal also involves the District Court's award of attorneys' fees of over \$5,000.00 to Petitioner, the denial of attorney's fees to Respondent, and to other related issues.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The facts as marshaled to support the District Court's findings are stated below.

Procedural History. Petitioner and Respondent were divorced April 20, 1999. (Appendix 3, R @ 46-54). The parties are the parents of four children now ranging in age from 17 to 11. The parties proceeded through their post-divorce lives with various accommodations to meet the needs of the children and the financial needs of the children and Petitioner. (Trial Tr. @ 45-49).

Petitioner remarried in November, 2004. Petitioner's remarriage triggered an automatic adjustment of child support to an amount consistent with the guidelines set forth in the Utah Code. (Appendix C, R@49, 51).

An automatic adjustment of child support took place. Petitioner filed a Petition to Modify Decree of Divorce. (R@59-61). An Order to Show Cause related to the Petition to Modify was also filed. (R@72-73). The Order to Show Cause leading to the Order from Trial Held October 26, 2006 and Objection Hearing Held December 18, 2006 was filed December 27, 2006. (R@165-167). This Order is the subject of Appeal 20070176-CA. (R@222-223).

Petitioner filed an Order to Show Cause dated February 22, 2007. (R@247-248). Respondent filed an Order to Show Cause March 9, 2007. (R@273-274). The Orders to Show Cause were heard by the District Court on March 19, 2007 and April 16, 2007. (R@415 and 416). The Court entered its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order from Hearing Held April 16, 2007 on June 15, 2007. (Appendices A and B, R@394-397 and 398-400). Respondent appeals from this Order.

Child Support. The Order from Trial Held October 26, 2006 and Objection Hearing Held December 18, 2006 provided that the base child support was \$2,061.00. (Appendix D, R@ 218-219). Beginning January 2007, the monthly child support obligation to Petitioner was \$2,516.08. (Appendix D, R@219). The child support was subject to adjustment based on the Respondent's gross receipts each year compared to the prior year's gross receipts. (Appendix D, R@218).

Respondent paid \$2,516.08 for January 2007. (R@245, 306). Then, Respondent provided documentation that no adjustment from the base child support amount applied in 2007. (R@304-306). Respondent paid \$2,061.00 for February and subsequent months. (R@245). Petitioner's counsel submitted his letter dated January 25, 2007. This letter states, in pertinent part:

... You can make a deduction based on the decrease from the comparison of 2005 and 2006 but the ultimate decision of increase will be based upon the gross receipts found in the corporate tax returns compared to the previous year.

(Defendant's Exhibit 7, R@41 line 19 to 43 line 20).

The Court denied Petitioner's Order to Show Cause claims that Respondent should be held in contempt for not paying the correct amount of child support and for judgment for additional child support. (Appendix B, R@ 399).

Family Meeting. Prior to Trial Held October 26, 2006, Respondent provided his children with extra money for numerous purposes. After the Trial, Respondent made the difficult decision that he could not continue to supplement his children's expenses. (R@301, 416 P. 20). Respondent wanted his children to know that he would not continue to supplement expenses. R@301, 416 P. 21). Respondent held a meeting with his four children to explain the financial changes that would take place. These changes included the supplemental expenses Respondent had paid and limitations on vacations. (R@300-301, 416 Pgs. 20, 21, 22). Respondent wanted to discuss these changes with his children, in part, to avoid the children being embarrassed by asking for money. (R@301).

Respondent told the children not to think bad of their mother. (R@416 P. 21). Respondent told the children that he did not hate their mother, that he forgave her and he did not want the children to think badly of her (R@300). Respondent stated he forgave Petitioner because he did not agree with Petitioner bringing him to Court and saying he was not paying the money he was supposed to. (R@416 P. 53-54). Respondent told the children that Respondent and his wife would not be giving the children a vacation trip for Christmas. (R@300, 416 P. 21).

Petitioner testified that the family meeting did not have any long-term impact on Petitioner's relationship with her children. (R@416 Pgs. 62-64). Petitioner testified that

Respondent has a good relationship with her children. This good relationship is before and after the family meeting. (R@416 P. 63). Petitioner did not communicate with Respondent regarding what was said to the children at the family meeting. (R@416 P. 70).

Checks With “B.” At the bottom lower left hand corner the word (B!) and (B) appear on the child support checks dated January 2, 2006 (should be 2007) and February 2, 2007. (R@242). Petitioner placed the first check on the refrigerator with a magnet under a couple of other checks. (R@416 P. 67). The second check was delivered into the house by the parties 17 year old son. (R@416 P. 70). The Petitioner didn’t say anything to Respondent about the checks having the “B”s on them or requesting a different system for paying child support. (R@416 P. 70). Respondent did not write the checks. (R@298, 416 P. 23). Respondent did not see the January check prior to its delivery. (R@416 Pgs. 23-24).

Attorneys Fees. Petitioner was awarded attorneys fees and Court costs totaling \$5,329.65. (Appendix B, R@399). The Court’s Finding of Fact 6 states the Court found that Petitioner was ultimately victorious in her motion in terms of the contempt. (Appendix B, R@395).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The District Court erred in finding Respondent in contempt of Court. Respondent was found to have committed an act of contempt of Court by involving the minor children in the divorce proceeding by holding a family meeting and explaining divorce and child support issues. The District Court does not have authority over actions of a

party to a divorce unless such actions are expressly proscribed by a written Order of the Court. The Respondent has a right to communicate with his children. This right includes the right to communicate about the divorce and the effect of the divorce on the Respondent and/or his family. A party is not obligated to make false statements to his children in explaining the status or effect of the divorce.

The District Court further erred in finding Respondent in contempt of Court for involving the children in divorce proceedings by giving Petitioner and one of the children child support checks with denigrating language on the checks. The Court does not have authority over actions of a party to a divorce unless such actions are expressly proscribed by a written Order of the Court. The Petitioner created the circumstances by which a son and a daughter of the parties saw a check with a “B” on the check.

Petitioner was not damaged by any of the actions claimed to have been acts of contempt. There is no basis for awarding Petitioner the excess amount of child support that had been paid by Respondent.

The primary issue raised by Petitioner in her Order to Show Cause was that Respondent had shorted the Petitioner certain child support monies in January, February and March, 2007. The Court found against the Petitioner finding that Respondent had paid the proper amounts of child support. Respondent was entitled to recover the excess amounts of child support paid in January 2007 in the amount of \$455.08.

Petitioner was not entitled to recover attorneys’ fees because Respondent was not in contempt of Court, Respondent prevailed on the principal issue(s) raised by Petitioner,

no allocation of fees to the issues and the prevailing parties was made and/or no basis for recovery of fees existed.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

RESPONDENT DID NOT VIOLATE ANY ORDER OF COURT THAT COULD FORM THE BASIS FOR FINDING RESPONDENT IN CONTEMPT OF COURT.

Civil contempt can only be found within a specific framework of statutory and factual requirements. Statutorily, Utah Code Ann. §78-32-1 provides the acts and omissions constituting contempt. Disobedience of any lawful judgment, Order or process of the Court is a basis for a finding of contempt. Disobedience of a lawful Order is the basis used by the trial Court to find Respondent in contempt. (R@ 394-397).

In order to find contempt, the Court must find that the person knew of the requirements, had the capacity to comply and intentionally failed or refused to do so. VonHake v. Thomas, 759 P.2d 1162, 1172 (Utah 1988). The first element, knowledge of the requirements, is missing in this case. This element is missing because there is no requirement and no knowledge of the requirement.

Petitioner's Motion for Order to Show Cause asserts that Respondent should be held in contempt for willful violation of not paying the full amount of child support. (R@235). A willful violation of child support provisions of an Order would violate a Court order establishing the amount of child support. The Court found Respondent had paid the correct amount of child support and had not violated any Order.

Petitioner then asserts Respondent should be held in contempt of Court for a willful violation of including the minor children in the divorce proceedings and causing several emotional abuses of Petitioner and minor children. No Order is referenced that Petitioner asserts is violated. (R@234).

Petitioner then asserts that Respondent should be held in contempt of Court for willful disobedience and noncompliance with the Decree of Divorce entered in 1999 at paragraph no. 3 that states, “the parties shall work together to solve issues involving the children...” (R@234). When the trial Court asked Petitioner’s counsel to identify the basis for the contempt charge, the following exchange took place:

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Friel, what are you pointing to, exactly, to give you the basis for this contempt charge?

MR. FRIEL: I think we outlined it in the motion, your Honor, or the affidavit. Let me see if I can point to it.

THE COURT: The—your motion here that I have is Paragraph 3 that indicates—

MR. FRIEL: That’s correct, your Honor.

THE COURT: Is that the one that says—

MR. FRIEL: Yes.

THE COURT: --the parties shall work together to solve issues involving the children?

MR. FRIEL: I think that is—that is what we cited. I think you have to have a literal interpretation of that, of the parties working together to resolve. So, then you look at that language and say, okay, has one of these parents

not worked together to resolve issues involving children and then we—we look at the actions of both parties at that point.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. FRIEL: Now, I would argue that actually, if we pull the transcript from October hearing, trial hearing before your Honor, your Honor probably said you will not involve children, but I will admit, that did not get in the order.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Fair enough. If that's the case then, I'm ready to—to proceed. ... (R@146 Pgs. 74-75).

The interpretation of a Divorce Decree is reviewed for correctness, affording the District Court no deference. Hawkins v. Peart, 37 P.3d 1062 (Utah 2001). The provision of the Decree of Divorce relied upon by the Court in finding Respondent in contempt is one phrase in a longer sentence in a longer paragraph having to do with joint legal custody. Specifically, paragraph 3 of the Decree of Divorce states:

That the parties are both fit and proper persons to be awarded the care, custody and control of the minor children and therefore the parties should be awarded joint legal custody with the Petitioner being granted primary physical custody. The parties shall work together to resolve issues involving the children, however the Petitioner as custodial parent shall make the final decision. (R@53).

Utah has provided for joint legal custody since 1988. Joint legal custody is defined by Utah Code Ann. §30-3-10.1 as follows:

(1) "Joint legal custody":

(a) means the sharing of the rights, privileges, duties, and powers of a parent by both parents, where specified;

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