2007

# Linda Anderson fka Linda Thompson v. Glenn Hunter Thompson : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

### **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

The Court of Appeals should dismiss this appeal due to the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order supporting the trial record of the several



contempts entered against the Respondent as well as the Courts' assessment of attorney fees.

Appellant's lack of marshaling the evidence warrant this matter's summary dismissal pursuant to well established caselaw.

### **STATEMENT OF FACTS/NATURE OF THE CASE**

The parties divorced in April, 1999 (Record @ 54). Petitioner filed a Petition to Modify in March, 2005 (Record @ 61). Petitioner filed an Order to Show Cause and a hearing was held on April 4, 2005 (Record @ 85). Petitioner filed a second Order to Show Cause in September, 2006 (Record @ 167).

At a hearing held October 16, 2006, a trial was scheduled by Judge Mark S. Kouris to handle the respective Petitions to Modify and the second Order to Show Cause (Record @ 169) and Respondent was ordered to produce tax records showing his gross receipts for the past several years.

After a half day trial held on October 26, 2006 the Court entered respective Findings of Fact and Conclusion of Law and an Order. Respondent appealed the Findings and Order entered by the Court, Case No. 20070176, and the Utah Court of Appeals upheld all of the Trial Court's findings with the exceptions that the Trial Court's award of attorney fees to the Petitioner was remanded back to the Trial Court

for additional findings. Further, the Court of Appeals found that the Trial Court exceeded its discretion by allowing a letter to be submitted into evidence that was part of settlement negotiations, but the Utah Court of Appeals also found that the error was harmless.

### **ARGUMENT: POINT ONE**

#### **WAS THE TRIAL COURT JUSTIFIED IN ITS FINDINGS AND ORDER OF SEVERAL CONTEMPTS AGAINST THE RESPONDENT?**

“The decision to hold a party in contempt of court rests within the sound discretion of the trial court and will not be disturbed on appeal unless the trial court’s action is so unreasonable as to be classified as capricious and arbitrary, or a clear abuse of discretion.” Marsh v. Marsh, 1999 UT App 14, 973 P.2d 988 (Utah App. 1999) (quoting Bartholomew v. Bartholomew, 548 P.2d 238, 240 (Utah 1976)).

“Under Utah law, in order to prove contempt for failure to comply with a ‘Court order it must be shown that the person cited for contempt knew what was required, had the ability to comply, and intentionally failed or refused to do so.’” Homeyer v. Stagg & Assocs., 2006 UT App 89, 132 P.3d 684 (quoting Von Hake v. Thomas, 759 P.2d 1162 (Utah 1988)).

The Trial Court found that there had been non-compliance by Respondent of a previous Court order (Record @ 395 and 396). Specifically, paragraph three of the Decree of Divorce states in part that,... “The parties shall work together to resolve issues involving the children...” (Record @ 53). The Trial Court specifically found that ... “Respondent was aware of the Decree and certainly had the capacity to follow the Decree” (Record @ 396). The Court further found that, “Respondent’s actions of calling a family meeting with the children was deplorable for involving the children of the parties” (Record @ 396).

Petitioner states that a Court order mandating that the parties work together regarding issues involving the children is the same as giving the parties instructions that they will not work against one another when dealing with children issues. This is not to go as far as to say that the parties must be in agreement with each other. The parties may have genuine disagreements, but the operative words that the parties “will work together to resolve issues involving the children” means that they will literally work together when dealing with parenting issues. Of course, the actions of the Respondent of calling a family meeting without Petitioner being involved and telling the children:

1. due to the actions (recent Court litigation) of your Mother the Court has said that I have not paid your Mother a lot of money;

2. they needed to forgive their mother for the actions she had taken against Respondent;

3. because of your Mom I can't buy you a big Christmas any more and I can't take you on vacations and trips any more (Record @ 396).

Respondent would have the Court believe that the Trial Court and Petitioner argue that there is something inherently wrong with holding a family meeting. Of course, that is not the case. Respondent is free to hold daily family meetings to discuss plans and activities of whatever nature Respondent so desires. However, Respondent is not free to hold family meetings with the children to explain Respondent's problems with Petitioner or to berate the children's mother and to try and inform the children that due to actions of the children's mother, the children will be directly impacted in a huge way.

In fact, Petitioner's testimony at the hearing was that the reaction of the children immediately after the family meeting, when returning to Petitioner, was that they were extremely upset and began taking their anger and frustration out on Petitioner. That is why the Trial Court made very specific findings of fact that

Respondent's actions "were deplorable" (Record at 396). Additionally, the Trial Court stated in its findings that the Court was "upset that the Respondent told the children to forgive their Mother" (Record @ 395).

Further, Respondent's appeal brief defends Respondent's action by stating that, "the Court does not necessarily police such actions" (Page 20, third full paragraph). Respondent also claims in the same paragraph that, "An act that may not be mannerly or inappropriate in a general social setting does not become contempt because a divorced party is involved" (Respondent's brief at page 20, paragraph 3).

The second separate contempt found by the Trial Court involved two separate child support checks from Respondent that had the letter "B" and "B!" handwritten in the lower left hand corner of each of the checks in the "Memo" or "For" section of the check. Petitioner submitted copies of the checks in her Affidavit in Support of Order to Show Cause (Record @ 236 and 237 and Appendix A). Respondent testified that he did not personally write either of these checks, but that his current wife wrote out both checks. However, Respondent did testify that he was aware of the checks and the second check he personally saw what was written on the check and that he

personally hand delivered the check to one of the minor children to have the child give the check to Petitioner.

Once again, Respondent tries to down-play and defend his actions claiming that, “consider the same checks being delivered to a landlord or a creditor. This action would not be illegal” (Brief at page 20). Not only is Respondent’s argument or justification wrong (individuals have been prosecuted to the full extent of the law for writing denigrating language on their checks in traffic citation cases and others) but in both situations of writing denigrating language on checks and in calling family meetings to discuss what the children’s mother has done, the Respondent is putting the minor children in the middle of the divorce and is telling the children what Respondent thinks of their Mother. This flies in the face of the Court order that the parents shall work together for the welfare of the children. This has a literal poisoning effect upon the children and even reaches issues of abuse and self worth problems for the children to grapple with.

Taken literally, Respondent would have this Court believe that the only way that Respondent could be found to be in contempt of Court for non-compliance is if the language in the Decree prohibited the writing of denigrating language on checks written by Respondent. Likewise, the argument on the other contempt finding would

be that the Court could only find contempt if the Court order prohibited any family meetings. Respondent has not understood Petitioner's position that family meetings are fine, just not family meetings that discuss what the mother of the children has done that is wrong and how the children are going to be impacted.

Finally, the Court must consider the cumulative effect that must have been the mindset of the Trial Court as the evidence unfolded. Less than six months earlier, October 26, 2006 the Court had held a trial between these exact same parties regarding different issues. The Court had entered findings (Record @ 210-213) for contempt against Respondent for:

1. failing to pay the proper amount of child support to Petitioner;
2. failing to pay the proper amount of alimony to Petitioner;
3. failing to produce his tax records; and,
4. failing to pay the necessary non-school extra curricular activities of the children.

Further, the Court had found that Respondent was not credible in his testimony and that Petitioner was credible in her trial testimony (Record @ 212).

The cumulative effect of Respondent not complying with numerous Court orders in the October 26, 2006 trial and then the Trial Court finding that Respondent

was engaging in additional actions that the Court found to be contemptible is best described by the Court itself at the close of trial on October 26, 2006 wherein Judge Kouris specifically told Respondent, "I'm ordering Mr. Thompson to understand that today in this courtroom you've been found in contempt of Court. There's a couple of things that judges can do when people are found in contempt, most notably, they can put them in jail for a month or they can fine them up to a thousand dollars....Based on the fact that you knew what all of these requirements are, I expect you to follow through with them now...the next time that you are found in contempt of my Court, I will consider seriously jail time (Record @ 352 Trial transcript, page 158). Finally, it is important to note that the findings of contempt by the Trial Court were recently upheld by the Utah Court of Appeals in Case No. 20070176CA in a decision recently rendered on January 4, 2008.

### **ARGUMENT: POINT TWO**

DID RESPONDENT PROPERLY MARSHAL ALL OF THE EVIDENCE AS IS MANDATED BY THE RULES AND THE COURT IN CHEN v. STEWART, 2004 UT 82, 100 P.3D 1177?

Petitioner has already listed under her Standards of Review section of this brief the problems that are evident due to Respondent's refusal to marshal the



evidence as is outlined in Chen. Further, Petitioner has set forth the determinative rule found in the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure, Rule 24(a)(9).

The Utah Supreme Court in Chen not only found that Defendant's had failed to marshal evidence, the Court also handed down specific "requirements" that Respondent must meet. An in depth analysis of these requirements brings to light the serious deficiencies in Respondent's brief. As is stated in Chen, "In order to challenge a Court's factual findings an appellant must first marshal all the evidence in support of the finding and then demonstrate that the evidence is legally insufficient to support the finding even when viewing it in a light most favorable to a Court below" (quoting Wilson Supply, Inc. v. Fraden Mfg. Corp., 2002 UT 94, 54 P.3d 1177). The Court admitted in Chen that the requirements to properly marshal were both rigorous and strict.

The first two issues identified by Respondent in his brief include whether the Trial Court committed reversible error in finding the Respondent in contempt of Court. At page ten of Respondent's brief he claims just after the Summary heading that, "The facts as marshaled to support the District Court's findings are stated below." Respondent then takes the next three pages of his brief to outline his marshaled facts. The first two pages of Respondent's attempt to marshal are totally

irrelevant to the very issues that Respondent raised in the appeal with the exception that he could argue that the attorney fee issue is impacted. Page twelve and thirteen under the headings of Family Meeting and Checks with “B!” are the only attempts that Respondent makes to marshal the facts.

There are precisely seventeen references to the record that Respondent identifies in his brief on the two issues regarding contempt. The Utah Supreme Court elaborated in Chen that more recently the Utah Court of Appeals explained that, “In order to properly discharge the duty of marshaling the evidence, the challenger must present, in comprehensive and fastidious order, every scrap of competent evidence introduced at trial which supports the very finding that appellant resists” (quoting Neely v. Bennett, 2002 UT App 189, 51 P.3d 724).

The Court in Chen gave additional direction to appellants by stating, “This does not mean that the party may simply provide an exhaustive review of all evidence presented at trial. Rather, appellants must provide a precisely focused summary of all the evidence supporting the findings they challenge. This summary must correlate all particular items of evidence with the challenged findings and then convince us that the Trial Court erred in the assessment of that evidence to its findings” (quoting W. Valley City v. Majestic Inv., Co., 818 P.2d 1311, 1315 (Utah Ct.

App.1991)). “What appellants cannot do is re-argue the factual case they presented in the Trial Court” (quoting Ondera/SLIC v. Ondera Cold Storage & Warehouse Inc., 872 P.2d 1051, 1053 (Utah Ct App. 1994)).

In its findings the Trial Court outlined the facts that it relied on to enter the findings of contempt of Court against the Respondent. This included the following facts that were not addressed by the Respondent:

1. the Decree states that the parties shall work together to solve issues involving the children;
2. the children are not to be involved;
3. the Respondent had several options available to involve the children;
4. the Respondent was significantly behind in his child support;
5. Respondent told the children to forgive their mother; and,
6. the second check with denigrating language was personally handed by Respondent to the parties’ oldest child (who was 16 years old).

Additionally, the Court in Chen stated, “to properly marshal the evidence the challenging party must demonstrate how the Court found the facts from the evidence and then explain why those findings contradict the clear weight of evidence” (citing Ondera at 1054).

Here, the Trial Court's findings were clearly supported by the evidence. As in Chen, Respondent has merely ignored damaging findings and avoided confronting problematic facts.

Hence, with Respondent not properly marshaling the evidence, the facts as found by the Trial Court stand and the rulings of contempt are proper or as the Court stated in Chen, "if the marshaling requirement is not met, the Appellate Court has grounds to affirm the Court's findings on that basis alone" (quoting Wilson).

### **ARGUMENT: POINT THREE**

DID RESPONDENT CITE AND APPLY THE CORRECT AND PROPER STANDARDS OF REVIEW IN HIS BRIEF?

In the first two issues as set forth by Respondent in his "Statement of Issues" he claims that the Standard of Review for contempt cases is clear and convincing evidence. This claim actually pertains to the burden of proof and not the standard of review. The standard of review for a civil contempt finding that is being challenged is that of "clear abuse of discretion" or are the Trial Court's actions so unreasonable as to be classified as capricious and arbitrary. Marsh v. Marsh, 1999 UT App 14, 973 P.2d 988 (quoting Bartholomew v. Bartholomew, 548 P.2d 238, 240 (Utah 1976)).

The last two issues raised by Respondent in his appeal deal with attorney fees. Respondent claims that the standard of review for attorney fees in divorce cases involves the interpretation of a divorce decree as set forth in Hawkins v. Peart, 2000 Utah 94, 37 P.3d 1062 (Utah 2001). Hawkins is a personal injury contract indemnity case. The Court held in Hawkins that, “the Supreme Court reviews the lower Court’s contractual interpretation of a release form for correctness, affording the District Court no deference.”

Petitioner sets forth that the standard of review in relation to attorney fees has nothing to do with a contractual interpretation. If Respondent argues that a divorce decree is a contract, Petitioner counters that that is incorrect. A marriage may be an enforceable contract between two individuals but the resulting Decree of Divorce is not a contract, it is an order of the Court.

Since Respondent has not given the Court of Appeals adequate or correct standards of review, and since there has not been adequate marshaling of the facts, Respondent’s appeal must fail.

#### **ARGUMENT: POINT FOUR**

HAS RESPONDENT PROPERLY REQUESTED AFFIRMATIVE RELIEF IN THE ARGUMENT SECTION OF HIS APPEAL BRIEF, POINT SIX, WITHOUT RAISING OR IDENTIFYING THE REQUEST IN HIS STATEMENT OF ISSUES?

It is not until argument six of Respondent's brief that Respondent claims that the Court erred in not ordering a refund of the overpaid child support in the amount of \$455.08. Throughout the brief Respondent claims that he prevailed on the controlling issue of the Order to Show Cause hearing (page 27, second full paragraph). In fact, this was only one of several issues with a focus by Petitioner on the improper family meeting and denigrating checks that were being received by Petitioner from the Respondent.

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